ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
March 4, 2002
3:38 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Gary Stevens, Co-Chair
Representative Drew Scal zi
Representati ve John Coghil |
Representative Mary Kapsner
Representative Beth Kerttul a

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Peggy Wl son, Co-Chair
Representati ve Fred Dyson

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 45
Rel ating to the | abeling of sal non food products.

- MOVED HIR 45 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 462

"An Act relating to the release of certain confidential records
and reports concerning fishing, fish buying, or fish processing;
and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED HB 462 OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 208
"An Act relating to aquatic farm ng of shellfish; and providing
for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 208(FSH) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 287

"An Act relating to the exenption of commercial fishing entry
permts from clainms of creditors, to loans to satisfy past due
federal tax obligations of comercial fishing entry permt
hol ders, and to loan origination charges for |oans nmade by the
comercial fishing loan program to refinance a debt obligation;
and providing for an effective date.”

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -1- March 4, 2002



- MOVED CSHB 287(FSH) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 46

Rel ating to the noratoriumon fish farmng in British Col onbi a.

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

Bl LL: HIR 45

SHORT TI TLE: SALMON LABELI NG
SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
02/ 19/ 02

02/ 19/ 02
03/ 04/ 02

REPRESENTATI VE( S) KERTTULA

Jr n- Page
2307

2307

BILL: HB 462

(
(
(

|_|)
H)
|_|)

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
FSH, L&C
FSH AT 3: 30 PM CAPI TOL 124

SHORT TI TLE: CONFI DENTI ALI TY OF FI SHI NG RECORDS
REPRESENTATI VE( S) STEVENS

T =

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
FSH, RES
FSH AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 124

SHORT TI TLE: AQUATI C FARM5S FOR SHELLFI SH

REPRESENTATI VE( S) SCALZI

SPONSOR( S) :
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
02/ 19/ 02 2312
02/ 19/ 02 2312
03/ 04/ 02

BILL: HB 208
SPONSOR( S) :
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
03/ 23/ 01 0705
03/ 23/ 01 0705
03/ 04/ 02

BILL: HB 287

(

(
(

|_|)
|_|)
H)

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
FSH, RES, FIN
FSH AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 124

SHORT TI TLE: EXEMPT ENTRY PERM TS FROM CREDI TOR CLAI M5

SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
01/ 04/ 02
01/ 14/ 02

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE

REPRESENTATI VE( S) SCALZI

Jrn- Page
1950
1950

(
(

|_|)
|_|)

Action
PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/ 02
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

March 4, 2002



01/ 14/ 02 1950 (H FSH, RES, FIN

01/ 18/ 02 2014 (H) COSPONSOR( S):  HUDSON

01/ 30/ 02 2101 (H) COSPONSOR( S):  FATE

03/ 04/ 02 (H FSH AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

SARAH BRYNER, Intern

to Representative Beth Kerttula

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 430

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative Beth
Kerttul a, sponsor of HIR 45.

JERRY MADDEN, Executive Director

United Sout heast Al aska G llnetters Association
P. O Box 21826

Juneau, Al aska 99802

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HIR 45.

DANI BROWN

Al aska Conservation Voters

5501 Thane Road

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 45.

GERALD (JERRY) MCUNE, Lobbyi st

for United Fishernen of Al aska (UFA)

211 4th Street, Suite 110

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1172

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 45 and HB 287
on behal f of the UFA

SUE ASPELUND

Cordova District Fisherman United (CDFU)

P. 0. Box 939

Cordova, Alaska 99574

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 45 and HB 287
on behal f of CDFU.

KATHY HANSEN, Executive D rector

Sout heast Al aska Fisherman's Alliance

9369 North Dougl as H ghway

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 45.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 3- March 4, 2002



GORDY W LLI AMS, Legislative Liaison

O fice of the Conm ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

P. O. Box 25526

Juneau, Al aska 99802-5526

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 462 on behalf of
t he departnent.

ALAN CAI N, Captain

Division of Fish & Wldlife Protection

Department of Public Safety

5700 East Tudor Road

Anchor age, Al aska 99507-1225

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 462 on behalf of
t he departnent.

DOUG MECUM Director

Di vi sion of Commercial Fisheries

Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane

P.O. Box 25526

Juneau, Al aska 99802

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 208 on behalf of
t he departnent.

BOB LCEFFLER, Director

D vision of Mning, Land and Water

Department of Natural Resources

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1070

Anchor age, Al aska 99501-3579

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 208 on behal f of
the departnent, but said that the tinetable was too short.

ROBERT HARTLEY

Al aska Shellfish Growers Associ ati on (ASGA)

P. O Box 2284

Honer, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 208.

RODGER PAI NTER

Al aska Shellfish Growers Associ ati on (ASGA)

P. 0. BOX 20704

Juneau, Al aska 99802

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in favor of the proposed
committee substitute for HB 208.

PAUL FUHS, Lobbyi st
for Al aska Tradenmark Shellfish

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -4- March 4, 2002



1635 Sitka, Nunmber 301

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Alaska Trademark
Shel Il fish in support of an anmendnent to HB 208.

GREG FAVRETTO

Favco

P. O. Box 190968

Anchorage, AK 99519-0968

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 208 and said the
farmed shellfish industry would be a great benefit to Al aska.

JOHN AGOSTI

Qut ekcak Shel |l fish Hatchery

P. O. Box 3475

Seward, Al aska 99664

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 208.

SCOI'T JANKE, Manager

City of Seward

P. O Box 167

Seward, Al aska 99664

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified in support of HB 208 on behal f of
the Gty of Seward.

MARY McDOWELL, Comm ssi oner

Commerci al Fisheries Entry Conm ssion (CFEC

Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane

8800 d aci er H ghway, Suite 109

Juneau, Al aska 99801-8079

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of CFEC on HB 287.

GREG W NEGAR, Director

Di vision of Investnents

Departnent of Community & Econom c Devel opnent

P. O Box 34159

Juneau Al aska 99803-4159

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on how the |oan program would
work with HB 287.

BRUCE HENDRI CKSQON, Commerci al Fi sher man

P. 0. Box 1439

Honmer, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 287 and gave specific
suggestions on how to anend it.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 5- March 4, 2002



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-6, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO- CHAIR GARY STEVENS called the House Special Commttee on
Fisheries neeting to order at 3:38 p.m Menbers present at the
call to order were Representatives Scalzi, Coghill, Kerttula,
and Stevens. Representati ve Kapsner joined the neeting as it
was in progress.

HIR 45- SALMON LABELI NG

CO CHAI R STEVENS said that the first matter before the conmttee
was HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 45, Relating to the |abeling of
sal non food products.

Number 0111

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA, speaking as the sponsor of HIR 45,
referred to U S. Senator Mirkowski's address to the Alaska State
Legislature and his nention of pending federal Iegislation that
would require the labeling of farmed fish. She said she
prepared the resolution in response to Senator Mirkowski's
statenment that a resolution mght help in the passage of that

federal |egislation. Representative Kerttula said she would
like to turn over the testinony to Sarah Bryner, an intern in
her office. Representative Kerttula told the commttee M.

Bryner had done a great job helping with the resol ution.
Number 0191
SARAH BRYNER, Intern to Representative Beth Kerttula, Al aska

State Legislature, testified before the commttee. She said the
issue of farmed salnon has entered the spotlight this

| egi sl ative session. She stated that foreign fish farns are
causing econonmic and ecol ogical harm to Alaska's fishing
i ndustry. She told the conmttee that Alaska's U S. Senators

have highlighted the need to require seafood |abeling to give
Al askan salnon a "fair footing," and to |let Americans know what
isin their food and where it canme from

M5. BRYNER said HIR 45 supports the actions of Alaska's

congressional delegation to require |abeling. She told the
committee that a recent anendnent to the "farm bill" requires

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 6- March 4, 2002



such | abeling. She said that it is the aimof this resolution
to help that bill becone | aw.

Number 0376

JERRY MADDEN, Executive Director, United Southeast Al aska
Gllnetters Association, testified before the commttee. He
said his association believes that an inportant part of the
mar keti ng and harvesting of salnmon is consuner education. He
t hanked Representative Kerttula and the Alaska congressional
del egation for bringing the issue forward. He said when

ordering sal non "down south," people don't seemto know where it
cones from Nevert hel ess, the price of salnbn does not seemto
go down nuch. He stated his belief in the inportance of the
consuner's knowing where the salnon cones from and what the
quality is.

Nunmber 0578

DANI BROW, Al aska Conservation Voters, testified before the
comm ttee. She said Alaska Conservation Voters is a not-for-
profit organi zation dedicated to protecting Al aska's environment
t hrough public education and advocacy. She said it represents
over 3,500 registered Alaskan voters through 34 nenber
or gani zati ons. Many of the menbers support the harvesting,
processing, and marketing of Al askan sal non. She stated that
wild salnmon bring critical econom ¢ benefits to Al askan
comunities. She said the commercial fishing industry is the

| argest private enployer in the state, and that to keep the wild
Al askan salnmon nmarket viable in a time when it 1is being
threatened by farned sal non from abroad, the unique features of
Al askan wi | d sal non nmust be taken into account [by consuners].

M5. BROWN announced that |abeling Al askan sal non food products
wi || provide consuners wth information to nmake inforned
decisions about the food they eat. She expressed her
organi zation's belief that consumers have a right to know where
their food cones from She said Al aska Conservation Voters
recogni zes the value of pronoting the unique features of Al askan
wld salnmon while also providing consunmers the information
needed to nmake informed decisions about the food they eat. She
urged all legislators to support HIR 45.

Number 0722

GERALD (JERRY) MCUNE, Lobbyist for United Fishernmen of Al aska
(UFA), testified before the conmttee. He said U S. Senator

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -7- March 4, 2002



Mur kowski has already put forward the farm bill to help nmake a
di stinction between farnmed fish and wld salnon. This is
al ready the case for nost other foods. He stated that it would
be a big boost for consumers to know what they are buying.

Nunber 0787

SUE  ASPELUND, Cordova District Fisherman United (CDFU),
testified before the conmttee. She said CDFU is pleased with
Representative Kerttula for bringing forward HIR 45, which is a
great exanple of state governnent working with the federal

governnment in the sane direction. She said that it wll help
those who market their own Alaskan wild salnon, and it wll
educate consuners. She conveyed CDFU s full support of the

resol uti on.

Number 0865

KATHY HANSEN, Executive Director, Southeast Al aska Fisherman's
Alliance, testified before the committee. She said that her
group supports the bill. She characterized it as a fairly

sinple [resolution] and as sonething | ong needed.
Number 0905

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI noved to report HIR 45 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and zero fiscal notes. There
being no objection, HIR 45 was noved out of the House Speci al
Comm ttee on Fisheries.

HB 462- CONFI DENTI ALI TY OF FI SHI NG RECORDS

Number 0960

CO CHAIR STEVENS announced that the next matter before the
commttee was HOUSE BILL NO 462, "An Act relating to the
rel ease of certain confidential records and reports concerning
fishing, fish buying, or fish processing; and providing for an
effective date.”

CO CHAI R STEVENS, sponsor of HB 462, said the bill clarifies
that when there is a request, reports of certain information
submtted by a fisherman, buyer, or processor can be provided
back to the person that submitted that information or soneone
the submtter has designated. It also provides for the rel ease
of certain information to the Departnent of Public Safety,
certain |law enforcenent personnel, the National Marine Fisheries

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 8- March 4, 2002



Service (NMFS), and the National Cceanic and Atnospheric
Adm nistration (NOAA) to help them in their enforcenent of
fisheries | aws.

Number 1064

GORDY W LLI AMS, Legislative Liaison, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&G, testified before the

conm ttee. He referred to page 2, l|line 19, [paragraph] (6);
saying it adds provisions that would enable [submitters] to have
information sent to another entity. He gave an exanple of the

Smal | Business Administration's requiring a fishing history in
order to give out a loan under the "disaster |oan prograns.”
Currently, this requires the granting of power of attorney, but
the bill would give "clearer statutory direction.”

MR. WLLIAVS then referred to the addition of a new [paragraph]

(7). It references annual statistical reports of a buyer or
processor. He said that is concerned with the COAR (Conmerci al
Qperator's Annual Report) report. Currently, processors submt

the COAR reports to the departnent, where the report becones
confidential information that cannot be submtted back to the
submtter, nor a designee. M. WIIlians gave an exanple that
t ook pl ace concerning processors in G acier Bay.

MR. WLLIAMS then referred to [paragraph] (8). There woul d be
an addition requiring saltwater charters to keep daily | ogbooks
and submt them weekly to the departnent. Once received by
ADF&G, the information would be nade avail able to the Depart nent
of Public Safety for enforcement actions it nay be |ooking into.
Al so, COAR reports would be given to the Departnent of Public
Saf ety.

Nunmber 1360

MR. WLLIAVS said paragraph (9) is changed to add a reference to
the requirenent that COAR reports submtted by offshore catcher-
processors to the state be accessible to federal |aw enforcenent
entities.

CO- CHAI R STEVENS asked if the bill was a "cleanup" of problens
t hat happened in the past.

MR, WLLIAMS answered affirmatively and said that the bill would

give clarity to the issue of people not being able to retrieve
information they had submtted to the state thensel ves.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 9- March 4, 2002



Nunber 1455

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI asked if there were any threats to the
confidentiality of fishing subdistricts. He asked if there
woul d be possibility of privileged information being nade "open
to everybody el se.”

MR. WLLIAMS said the changes in HB 462 would not alter the way
fish tickets are processed. He added that no additional
privileged informati on would be made public by the bill

Number 1600

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked about the designee in [paragraph]
(6), and said he did not know "what that designee m ght | ook
li ke. "

VR. W LLI AMVS again referenced t he Smal | Busi ness
Adm nistration's requiring a history for a loan or sonething
simlar. He told the commttee that an individual would request
that the departnment submt the information to a designee by
means of a notarized application.

Nunmber 1686

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked M. WIllianms why the Division of
Fish and WIldlife Protection was taken out of the bill [on page
2, lines 27-28] as one of the entities that the departnment can
give the information to.

MR WLLIAVS said that it was at [the Departnment of Public
Safety's] request. The departnent would prefer to get away from
delineating between fish and wldlife protection, and public
safety in statute.

Nunber 1742

ALAN CAIN, Captain, Dvision of Fish & WIdlife Protection,
Department of Public Safety, testified via tel econference. He
said his departnent's main concern was the adding of the
requirenents for saltwater charter |ogbooks and processor
information in [paragraph] (8). He said his departnent
currently needs to obtain a search warrant to view the |ogbooks
when there is suspicion of msconduct. He said the bill gives
the departnent access to the information nuch in the sane
fashion as for fish tickets. He stated that his departnent

supported the bill

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -10- March 4, 2002



Number 1821

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked Captain Cain if the penalty for
"not having the information correct” would be different. He
clarified by asking if this changes the level of penalty if the
information is wong.

CAPTAIN CAIN said the bill does not change the |evel of penalty.
Fi nes change based upon the gravity of the violation. He said
all HB 462 does is nmake obtaining the information easier. He
explained that it would result in nore w despread investigations
of violations, as well as better conpliance.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL expressed his concerns about due process.

Nunber 1939

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI asked Captain Cain what species was being
specifically <considered in the saltwater <charter | ogbook
provision of the bill. He asked if concerned mainly sal non, or

hal i but charters.

CAPTAIN CAIN said nmost of the concern was wth the salnon
fishery in general, such as in Cook Inlet and Southeast Al aska.
He said it is fully utilized, and there are sone concerns about
underreporting and overtaking of the salnon stocks. He
mentioned that there were no biological concerns about the
hal i but fisheries.

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI asked if the problem was mainly in
Sout heast Al aska.

CAPTAIN CAIN said he was not very famliar wth the field aspect
of the issue, but Cook Inlet and Southeast Al aska are the main
areas where his departnment has had conpl aints.

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI said that if there are suspicions about
the wvalidity of the |ogbooks, the North Pacific Fishery
Managenent Council nmay have sone concerns as they review the
i dea of a halibut charter |IFQ [Individual Fish Quotal]

Number 2060
CO-CHAIR STEVENS asked i f t he bill woul d obvi at e t he

departnent's need for search warrants to obtain access to
| ogbooks.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -11- March 4, 2002



CAPTAIN CAIN said that was correct. It would be much the sane
as the access permtted to the departnent for fish tickets.

Number 2076

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if currently there nust be sone
sort of probable cause for the departnment to obtain a search
warrant and | ook at the records.

CAPTAIN CAIN said Representative Kerttula was correct. The
current requirenents for obtaining access to the |ogbooks are
very time-consuni ng. But he added that the type of information
contained therein is very much on a par with the fish ticket
information - the records of the taking of a fishery resource in
a comercial mnner for profit by the operator. Captain Cain
said the information is very simlar; it is treated the sane and
held to the sane | evel of confidentiality.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked how this information would be
gat her ed.

CAPTAIN CAIN said there are several nethods used to gather the
i nformation. The sinplest nethod is a telephone call [to the
Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane] to ask for substantiation of a
conpl ai nt. If there is evidence that the records would be of
benefit, the Departnent of Public Safety requests a certified
copy and then conducts an investigation - alnost identical to
the process used for fish ticket information.

Nunber 2235

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if she was correct in assumng
that the Departnent of Public Safety would not be "whol esale
going in and getting all the records and creating a database or
anything like that,” and that it would be specific, on a - case-
by- case basis.

CAPTAIN CAIN said Representative Kerttula was correct. He said
his departnent was not going to do anything that it was not
doing presently with fish tickets. He said he felt it necessary
to have sone sort of probable cause to begin |ooking at

sonet hi ng. He stated that his departnment does not have the
resources to deal with all of the information that is contained
in all of the |ogbooks, "even if we wanted to." The bill would

give his departnent a "response type situation" that would
streamline its ability to look at reported violations and nove

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -12- March 4, 2002



forward with the investigation, or call it off, as the evidence
di ct at es.

Nunber 2319

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI noved to report HB 462 out of commttee
wi th individual recommendations and a zero fiscal note. There
being no objection, HB 462 was noved out of the House Speci al
Comm ttee on Fisheries.

HB 208- AQUATI C FARMS FOR SHELLFI SH

CO CHAIR STEVENS announced that the next matter before the
commttee was HOUSE BILL NO 208, "An Act relating to aquatic
farm ng of shellfish; and providing for an effective date."

Number 2370

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI noved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS), version 22-LS0763\L, Uternohle, 2/26/02, as the
wor ki ng docunent. There being no objection, Version L was
before the committee.

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI, sponsor of HB 208 inforned the comittee

that the bill was the result of a cunulative effort and severa
years of hard work between the Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane
(ADF&G) and the Department of Natural Resources (DNR). The

effort had been to solve problens in the area of shellfish farm
permtting.

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI said the bill would allow the Departnent
of Natural Resources to auction and lease 90 sites. In
accordance with the ADF&G criteria, 60 of these sites would be
"suspended-cul ture" sites, 20 would be "on-bottoni sites, [and
10 woul d be for farm ng geoducks]. The sites would be avail abl e
for lease annually until [all sites are |eased], and they would
require ten-year | eases. He said the bill calls for farnmers to
abi de by "the sustained-yield principle" when harvesting.

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI told the commttee that the market demand
cannot be met with the small nunber of shellfish farns in
Al aska. He said there is a great deal of interest in expanding
farms throughout the state, and that there is a |arge anmount of
support for the bill

Nunber 2470

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -13- March 4, 2002



DOUG MECUM Director, D vision of Comrercial Fisheries, Al aska
Department of Fish & Gane, testified before the conmttee. He

said the bill was noving in the right direction, and that sone
of the <constitutionality problens had been renoved. Some
concerns remain with regard to the tinefrane. He said the

departnment had been in correspondence with the Al aska Shellfish
G owers Association on the issue of the tinefrane. He made it
known that it would not be inpossible to neet the current
tinmeframe, but it would be very difficult to do so. He told the
commttee that the bill was noving in the right direction, and
that it would be a reasonable way to junmp-start the aquatic
farmng industry in the state.

Number 2535

BOB LCEFFLER, Director, Division of Mning, Land and Wter,
Department of Natural Resources, testified via tel econference.
He supported the comments of M. Mecum He said he was pl eased
with ADF&G the Alaska Shellfish Gowers Association, and
| egi slative staff. He expressed his doubt that everything could
be acconplished within the one-year tinetable.

Nunber 2577

ROBERT HARTLEY, Alaska Shellfish G owers Association (ASGA)
testified via tel econference. He said he was a past president

of the association and had been working on the bill for a year
or two. The bill would address concerns of departnental
approval, and people would be able to "know what [they] are
getting into." It would also provide for ©proper site
evaluations. He said the bill also provides a continuing source
of sites. Once initial surveys are done, year after year, sites
wi |l be available because there will not be a great abundance of
peopl e getting into shellfish farm ng. He stated that the npst
i nportant aspect of the bill is that it provides a "good steady

source of sites for aquatic farmng."

Number 2709

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI made reference to departnental clainms that
the tinetable was not easily satisfied. He asked if February
2004 woul d be nore easily incorporated.

MR. HARTLEY answered that it would be better to allow nore tine.

Nunber 2773

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -14- March 4, 2002



RODGER PAI NTER, Al aska Shellfish Gowers Association (ASG),
testified before the conmttee. He expressed his support of the
bill in the form of the proposed CS. He cited his extensive
work with Representative Scalzi and Senator Torgerson through
the previous year, as well as wth the agency to resolve
concerns about the |egislation. M. Painter nmade note of the
difficult financial tinmes [for state governnent] and said the
fiscal note is "very high,” but he added that it is a good
investnment into one of the largest natural resources in the
state. He expressed his belief that shellfish farmng is an
investnment that would repay its cost nany tinmes over. He gave
several exanples of how the farns could pay for the investnents
made by the state.

TAPE 02-6, SIDE B

MR. PAINTER said the ASGA would |like to see "sonething that
wor ks for everyone."

Nunber 2954

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI asked M. Painter if [ASGA] had a problem
with changing the inplenentation date from July 2003, to
February 2004.

MR. PAINTER said February 2004 could work if the agencies
respond in the tinmefranes that had been di scussed.

Nunber 2910

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL pointed out that the nunber of sites has
an effect on the fiscal note. He asked if it would be "workabl e
in the industry” to reduce the m ni mum nunber of sites.

MR. PAINTER said that in reality, there would not be 90
different |ocations. He explained that with the wording in the
bill, the 90 sites could be nade available in 30 different
areas, for exanple. The industry m ght select an area such as a
bay, where nultiple farns could be |located. This concentration
of farnms would nake the agencies' jobs nuch easier. He added
that the industry is working actively to identify sites for
nom nat i ons. He said he had personally been working closely
with state, local, and federal agencies on a concept he terned
an "aquacul ture devel opnent zone."™ He said if the bill passed,
there were a nunber of areas near Prince of Wil es I|sland that
woul d be easily nom nated because sone sites had already been
surveyed there.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -15- March 4, 2002



Number 2793

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said that the issues of identification
paperwork, and |egal research costs were what he was concerned
about . He said he was "trying to get a handle on" whether it
was "a site issue" or a "timng issue."

MR. PAINTER said DNR would undergo a |and use planning process
that requires nuch public transparency. The process woul d seek
out conflicts, and if one were being found that could not be
mtigated, the site would be "taken off the table.” He
characterized the process as "conplex," and warned it would take
sonme tinme. He explained that the fiscal notes are high because
pl anners would have to be hired to work on the sites. He said
ADF&G s costs would cone from site surveys and the [Division of
Habitat and Restoration's] reviews of inpacts on fish and
wildlife resources.

Number 2690

PAUL FUHS, Lobbyist for Alaska Trademark Shellfish, testified
before the commttee. He characterized the bill as "good
| egi slation” and a boon to the economes of the rural areas in
parti cul ar. He brought forth the problem of obtaining brood

stock for standing stocks, specifically in the case of geoducks.
He gave the exanple of a group he represents and said that the
sites that are the best to farm already have native stocks.

MR. FUHS said the issue of limted-entry dive fisheries brings a
conflict between commercial divers and shellfish farmers. He
said the constitutional anmendnent that enabled limted entry
said, "Comon property shall not be abridged except for limted
entry and aquaculture.” He said limted entry has already been
litigated, but "aquacul ture" has never been defined. M . Fuhs
said the court told his clients that:

The ADF&G couldn't say, "W're not going to let you do

it because it's a potential future fishery." W' re
not diving on the site now, no one is using it. They
said that was wong, but then they said, "You also
have this comon property issue out there that you
have to resolve." So they said, "If there is a
substantial amount...."” Well, [ADF& has never cone

out and said what's a substantial anmount; there is no
regul ation, so we're caught in a conplete Catch-22 on
this. The departnent is in a difficult situation

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -16- March 4, 2002



because of having no resolution of this conmmon
property resource issue. So the thing is, can the
| egi slature do sonething with this? And t hr oughout
the findings in the court case, they were crying out
for nore definition of what really is the policy here.
So the essence of this proposed anendnent is ... that
if you got a place where no one has ever fished
before, that could becone an aquaculture site, but
what the departnment would have to do is post a public
notice to say, "This is going to becone an aquaculture
site; comrercial divers, get your act together because
you're going to be able to go in there and harvest
that site.” And then the requirement on the farnmer
is, at the end of that time, they have to restore it
to the population it was before. So you have no net
| oss of the population there, and at the end of the
| ease, the divers could go back in. You haven't
really renoved it from the public domain, but it's a
practical way to let the divers go get an economc
value of the standing stock, then let the farm go
forward. That's the essence of this amendnent.

MR. FUHS said that the anmendnent was before various entities and
that if he and his clients could resolve the issue through
conprom se, "we'll drop the lawsuit."

Nunmber 2498

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI said he was under the inpression "that the
venue was to have that |anguage go through in regulation, not in
statute.” He asked M. Fuhs if that would be the case if the
bill were to be anmended.

MR. FUHS said he did not think "this has really been consi dered
in regulation.” He said:

It's interesting that for a fishery that is a common
property fishery with no |imted entry, what the
departnment does now, they let the public go in - I|ike
for littleneck <clanms, they'll publish a period;
anybody can go harvest the area; after that harvest
period, the farmer gets it; and if the site is under

their control, ... then nobody can go harvest it
anynore. |It's their property for the | ease period.

For limted entry, which is a restricted access
fishery, they are saying that that inbues sone

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -17- March 4, 2002



property title to those people who have it, even in
areas that they are not fishing. So, can you see the

di fference? | nmean, to nme it's kind of backwards.
You'd think that the public that had access to it
woul d have nore rights than a limted group. W' ve
got 104 divers in limted entry - 80 of them aren't

even from Al aska - so 24 divers up here that you could
say have claimto every single animal out there, just

because it's limted entry. well, that doesn't nake
any sense to ne, but how do we protect our rights -
that's ... the solution we're | ooking for here.

MR. FUHS said he could understand ADF&G s quandary over being
"stuck right in the mddle of this thing." He said the
departnment needs sone direction from the legislature or the
courts.

Nunber 2415

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI said |imted entry fisheries are to
regul ate the managenent of the fishery. He said it is no
different for the managenent of the geoduck fishery. For common
property, people can go out and dive in any area that is open,
they just cannot sell what they harvest. Representative Scal zi
said, "You can't sell a sport fish."

MR. FUHS said he was agreeing with Representative Scal zi. He
added:

They should be treated equally, but they're not right
now because of this |egal argunent concerning property
rights under limted entry fisheries. That's where
we're stuck right now. It's a big Catch-22. [1t
nmust] be resol ved one way or anot her.

Nunmber 2369

GREG FAVRETTO, Favco, testified via teleconference. He said the
ASGA nenbers grow a high-quality product with an excellent
mar ket pl ace reputation. He told the commttee that i ncreasing
mar ket demand and gradual ly increasing market val ue per pound or
per dozen has been the hallmark of mariculture shellfish, unlike
the market for sal non. H s conpany had forecast a 15 percent
growh in sales in the present year over the previous one. He
said his conmpany is looking forward to a long, steady future in
the year-round mariculture shellfish industry.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 18- March 4, 2002



Nunber 2248

JOHN  AGOSTI, Qut ekcak  Shellfish Hatchery, testified via
tel econference. He said he was in favor of the bill because the
state invested three and a half mllion dollars into building

the hatchery. The [Qutekcak hatchery] is working hard to grow
the industry in Al aska; because the ADF&G built the hatchery so
| arge, the present industry is not big enough to support it
financially. He said the hatchery is "ranping up" its sales
income every year, but presently nost of its inconme is from
grant nonies. M. Agosti said the hatchery's break-even tine is
being stretched into the future, as agencies gradually becone
less willing to deliver funds.

MR. AGCSTI told the commttee that the hatchery has introduced
four new species to help the industry diversify. He said
[ Qutekcak Shellfish Hatchery] is counting on the bill to help
junp-start the industry by creating nore custoners for its
products.

Number 2089

SCOTT  JANKE, Manager , Cty of Sewar d, testified Vi a
t el econf erence. He said the City of Seward is the |easehol der
for the hatchery, and that they sublease it to Qutekcak. He
stated that the city has an interest in seeing the hatchery
succeed on the local econom c devel opnent |evel as well as that
of the state. He gave the exanple of Cedar Key, Florida where
an aquaculture venture went from nothing to a $60 nillion
industry in ten years. He expressed that he would not want to
see shellfish farmers in Alaska mss an opportunity to take
mar ket share in such an attractive industry. He said the Gty
of Seward was in support of the |egislation.

Nunber 2002

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI said he thought it a good idea for the
City of Seward to take over the hatchery. He conceded that
there was sonme work to do on sonme of the |anguage concerning the
sites. He said the fiscal note would be reduced if the deadline
were carried "a little further out.”

Nunmber 1904
REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI noved to report CSHB 208, version 22-

LSO763\L, Uernohle, 2/26/02, out of commttee wth individua
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -19- March 4, 2002



no objection, CSHB 208(FSH) was noved out of the House Speci al
Committee on Fisheries.

HB 287- EXEMPT ENTRY PERM TS FROM CREDI TOR CLAI M5

CO CHAIR STEVENS announced that the next matter before the
commttee was HOUSE BILL NO 287, "An Act relating to the
exenption of comrercial fishing entry permts from clains of
creditors, to loans to satisfy past due federal tax obligations
of comercial fishing entry permt holders, and to |oan
origination charges for loans nade by the conmercial fishing
| oan program to refinance a debt obligation; and providing for
an effective date.™

Nunmber 1859

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI noved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS), version, 22-LS1106\J, Uernohle, 2/27/02, as
t he working docunent. |[No objections were stated, and Version J
was treated as the working docunent. ]

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI said the bill is very inportant to the
state and the commercial fishing industry in general. It wll
make clear and consistent the point that "comrercial fishing
entry permts are not property, but instead they constitute a
use privilege." Commercial fishing entry permts should be
viewed as occupational |icenses. The bill also elimnates the
| oan-origination charge for refinancing loans. He said the bil
also renoves the "sunset" <clause that is a part of the
provision. He explained that the particular loan is for federa
tax obligations of up to $30,000. Under the bill, the I|oan
woul d be avail abl e once a year instead of the current once-in-a-
lifetime provision.

Nunber 1651

REPRESENTATI VE  KERTTULA asked how many tinmes the [tax
obligation] |oan would be made avail abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI said the "once-in-a-lifetinme" provision
woul d change to a "once a year" basis.

Nunmber 1585

MARY McDOVELL, Commi ssi oner, Comrer ci al Fi sheri es Entry
Comm ssion, Al aska Departnment of Fish and Gane, testified before
the conmttee. She said she would speak to Sections 1, 5, 6,

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 20- March 4, 2002



and 7. She characterized those as the ones that would clarify
and firm up the legal status of limted entry permts under
Al aska law. She said, "The State of Al aska has always held the
position that limted entry permts are not property and cannot
be seized by creditors.™ She said the state has fought any
attenpt by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) or other creditors
to seize permts. She said that sonme statutes are not as clear
and concise on that point as they could be. Leavi ng the | egal
status of permts open in any way to varying interpretations
could be detrinental to the state, to fishernmen in the limted
entry system and to fisheries managenent in that system

M5. McDOWELL cited AS 16.43.150(e) as stating:

An entry permt constitutes a use privilege that my
be nodified or revoked by the legislature wthout
conpensati on.

She characterized this legal status as an inportant part of the
fisheries managenent system It ensures the state maintains
control of fishing privileges. Ms. MDowell said HB 287
[ Section 5] adds the flat statenent, "They are not property.”

Number 1465

M5. McDOWNELL pointed out that if anyone could argue that permts
could be construed as property, it mght very well destabilize
the whole system Under these circunstances, fisheries
al l ocations could be subject to challenges under takings, permt
mar ket val ues could be subject to harnful fluctuations, and the
state could lose control of fishing privileges to the courts.
She went on to say that with many fisheries struggling at the
present tinme, it is inportant to make sure statutes are as clear
and consi stent as possi bl e.

Number 1420

M5. McDOWELL referred to Section 1 of [Version J]. She said in
Title 9 of the current law, entry permts are included in the
list of types of property individuals are entitled to exenpt
from civil procedure. She said this exenption could inply that
permts are property. The bill renoves the permts from the
section in Title 9, and inserts precise |language in the Limted
Entry Act itself. She pointed out that page 7, line 26 [Section
5] of Version J spells out that permts are not property.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -21- March 4, 2002



M5. McDOWELL directed the commttee to Section 6. On page 7,
lines 30-31, the bill inserts |anguage into statute that nmakes
it clear that the only tinme a person may request the transfer of
an entry permt due to an execution on the permt is when that
execution is for the purpose of enforcing a lien recorded with
the commssion under the statute for the Child Support
Enf or cenent Di vi si on.

M5. McDOWELL then referred to Section 7. She said in Version J,
page 8, lines 19-24 spell out that permts are exenpt from all
claims of all creditors. Exceptions are nade only for fishing
| oans taken out wunder the D vision of Investnents or the
Commercial Fishing and Agriculture Bank (CFAB), and for Child
Support Enforcenment Division authority to place a lien on a
permt.

M5. McDOWELL said the bill goes a long way toward clarifying the
state's long-held position on the legal status of limted entry
permts. She said the entry commission fully supports [Version
J] and urges passage of the bill

Number 1281

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI asked Ms. McDowell to qualify why there is
an exenption for child support.

Nunmber 1248

M5. MDOWELL said there is some concern that Ileaving child
support in could wundermne the state's position, but she
characterized child support as a special circunstance. She said
the state has al ways | ooked at child support as a high priority.
Therefore, it is clear in the bill that permts are not
property, but there are references to a "lien against permts”
that is left in the bill

Nunber 1179

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked how divorce proceedings would
affect entry permts.

M5. McDOWELL said that permits can only be in the nane of one
person. She said she knew of instances of divorce where a val ue
was assigned to a permt and it was split as nmarital property,
but the permt itself cannot be split.

Number 1118

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -22- March 4, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if the exenption for federal tax-
relief had been used regularly.

M5. McDOWELL said it is not used heavily but it does protect
permts. She said if the Internal Revenue Service were to take
permts and auction them off, it would sell them for pennies on
the dollar. The result of that would be a weakening of the
whole limted entry system

M5. MCDOWELL said that the limted entry systemis inportant to
the way fisheries are nanaged in the state. She added that it
is inmportant that the state maintain control of the system

Number 0963

GREG W NEGAR, Director, Division of Investnents, Departnent of
Community & Economc Devel opnent, testified before the
comittee. He said the bill would change his program slightly.
The tax obligation program would be extended by the bill. He

characterized the program as not one of |arge volune, but said
it is very inportant as "another tool" to protect someone from
losing a limted entry permt. He said that the bill would al so
elimnate the half-percent fee for refinancing. The | ow
interest rates have made the refinancing program very popular in
recent years.

MR WNEGAR said the refinancing program would have a snall
i npact on the |oan fund, but added that it would not affect the

general fund. He said the inpact would not wundermine the
financial integrity of the |oan fund. The revolving fund is
totally self-sufficient and has not received any general fund
noney since 1985. He pointed out that the application process
is streamined, so there is not a large admnistrative burden.
He explained that there is a provision that if the bill passes,
but is not signed into law before the sunset date, the
refinancing portion would still go into effect.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked about Section 3 and whether it was
a hal f-percent charge.

MR. W NEGAR tol d Representative Coghill that was correct.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if the half percent would help
carry sonme of the adm nistrative costs and why we're giving that

up.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -23- March 4, 2002



Number 0717

MR WNEGAR said that the largest chunk of the division's
portfolio has already been refinanced, or is in the process, as
aresult of the lowinterest rates.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said the cost of labor is not going to go

down. He expressed his belief that the fee should be
mai ntai ned, and that there are other things getting relief in
the bill. He asked if changing [Section 3] from a once-in-a-

lifetime federal-tax-relief opportunity, to one that may be
i nvoked once a year, wuld "change the criteria at all for
this."

MR. WNEGAR said the purpose would be the sane, but it would
gi ve people the opportunity to receive help once a year.

Number 0504

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he could appreciate why the change
was made, but he said he was worried about unintended
consequences under m snanagenent. He asked M. Wnegar what he
would say as a lender if sonebody is the fourth tinme around on
this?

MR. WNEGAR told Representative Coghill that he raised a good
point and said, "It still is a loan." He said the division
woul d determne if a |loan should be made to an individual from a
financi al standpoint. He made clear that "four tinmes in a row'

would be sonething closely scrutinized along wth credit,
capacity for repaynent, collateral, and other issues.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said a situation of |egal precedence
m ght be set whereby a court trial mght allow individuals to
use the tax-relief provision many tines.

Nunber 0446

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI said Representative Coghill had good
points and asked M. Wnegar if there had been a great problem
of people defaulting on the loans. He asked if it would be nore
appropriate to offer the tax-relief opportunity every five years
i nstead of once a year.

MR  WNEGAR said the delinquency rate for the particular

portfolio was "a little bit higher than the normal portfolio,
but not much higher." He said as far as looking at a "once a

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 24- March 4, 2002



year” or a "once in every five year" tax-relief provision, the
division would be looking at the applications as |oans, and
year-after-year applications by an individual would cause
concern.

CO CHAIR STEVENS asked how nmany total | oans there are
out st andi ng.

Number 0310

MR. WNEGAR said in the life of the program - going back to
fiscal year 1995 - there had been 306 |loans. He said that there
were 241 on the books presently.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked, if there were a continuous federal
tax default situation, what the protocol would be to "close that
| oan down. "

Number 0251

MR. WNEGAR said that if a prospective borrower is not in good
standing with the Internal Revenue Service, a loan is not
gr ant ed.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked, "That has to be a
r eaut hori zati on?"

MR. W NEGAR said, "They would have to cone in and reapply for a
| oan. "

Nunmber 0188

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked where the "once a year" | anguage
came from

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI said, "Mre than once, you had to have
sonmething. Your IRS bill conmes through once a year."

Number 0075
REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL asked what the typical l|oan "size" and
"l ength" are. He asked, "How many times could they do a federal

default on that | oan?"

MR. W NEGAR said the average loan size is in the $15,000 range,
and the average term is from five to ten years. He said

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -25- March 4, 2002



collateral for the loan is a limted entry permt, and that puts
the division in a superior lien position to the IRS.

TAPE 02-7, SIDE A
0001

[A question by Representative Coghill was cut short by the
changi ng of tapes.]

MR WNEGAR said the division would have the recourse of
forecl osing on the | oan.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said once there was a foreclosure on the
federal level, "foreclosing, at that point, wuld just be
pulling the permt."

MR. W NEGAR agreed that would be the nost |ikely outcone, but
not all loans are secured by permts. He said [pulling the
permt] would be the option if nothing else could be worked out
wi th the borrower.

Nunmber 0080

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said she believed the loan goes up to
$25,000 and nust be paid off within 15 years. She said the
beauty of the loan is that the IRS is not allowed to seize the
permt; it stays within the state and is then preferably sold to
an Al aska resident. She mentioned the benefit of the state's
being able to sell it at market value - thereby ensuring the
integrity of the value of permits in a fishery.

Number 0233

GERALD (JERRY) MCUNE, Lobbyist for United Fishernmen of Al aska
(UFA), testified before the commttee. He said the UFA supports

the bill. He characterized the renoval of the half-percent fee
to refinance as especially helpful. He said the UFA sm|es upon
the way the bill protects people's Ilivelihood by shielding

permts fromcreditors and the IRS. He pointed out that in many
areas of the state, commercial fishing entry permts are the
only nmeans of nmaking a |iving.

MR MCUNE, returning to Representative Kapsner's earlier
guestion, said that a permt owned before nmarriage belongs to
the sane person after a divorce. If a permt 1is purchased
during a nmarriage and a divorce ensues, the permt becones

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 26- March 4, 2002



common property and nust either be sold and the noney divided,
or paynent for half the value nmust be paid to the other party.

Nunber 0427

SUE ASPELUND, Cordova District Fishernen United, testified
before the committee. She characterized the bill as "yet
another tool in the box"™ for fishernen facing a hard set of
circunstances in the industry. The program is not a huge one,
but for many people it will nake the difference between feeding
their famlies or not. She said the bill gives the industry a

"buffer"” of time to help it rebuild.
Number 0528

BRUCE HENDRI CKSON, Commer ci al Fi sher man, testified Vi a
t el econf erence. He told the conmttee of an idea he had while
| ooking at [the bill]. He made reference to AS 16.10. 333. He
pointed out that permts are worth a fraction of their forner
val ues. He suggested addi ng:

In the event that the value of the permt declines to
| ess than one third of the purchase price at the tine

the loan foreclosure may cone due, the state or
CFAB may wite down the value of the permt to reflect
the average of the two nost recent sales in order to
renegotiate a basis for the obligor that would give
that person a chance to refinance their l|loan at the
sane |evel that a new buyer would be able to finance
t he purchase of that sane permt.

MR. HENDRI CKSON said before a permt is foreclosed on, a person
shoul d have a chance to refinance the |loan at the sane |evel at
whi ch a new buyer would be able to finance the sane permit. He
said he did not want to see the state's resources given away.

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI asked the commttee if there were any
guestions or problens with the bill

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL said he had some individual concerns
about the renoval of the half-percent fee for refinancing and
said he would do sone homework on that, as well as the "once a
year" provision.

Number 0793

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -27- March 4, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI noved to report CSHB 287, version 22-
LS1106\J, Uernohle, 2/27/02, out of committee w th individual
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 287(FSH) was noved out of the House Speci al
Comm ttee on Fisheries.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Conmmttee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at 5:25
p. m

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 28- March 4, 2002



